BYLAWS OF

TURNERS ANONYMOUS

A PENNSYLVANIA NONPROFIT CORPORATION As Approved November 20, 2021

ARTICLE I NAME AND OFFICES

Section 1. <u>Name.</u> The Corporation shall be known as Turners Anonymous, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation."

Section 2. Offices. The principal office of the Corporation shall be at the Pennsylvania address of the current Chairperson of the board of directors. In the event the Chairperson of the Board of Directors is not a resident of Pennsylvania, a Pennsylvania resident will be appointed from among the Directors as the agent. The Corporation may also have offices at such other places within or without this Commonwealth as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or the business of the Corporation may require.

ARTICLE II MISSION STATEMENT

Section 1. <u>Mission.</u> The Corporation's mission is to educate woodturners and the public in, and about, the safe art and craft of woodturning, as well as to donate examples of turned pieces to the public and/or other charitable organizations. We define woodturning as the shaping of wood using a lathe, and associated decorative and finishing techniques, that result in objects and images that range from the familiar to the profound. This includes everything from decorative and functional bowls, boxes, and vessels, to furniture, architectural spindles, toys, tools, musical instruments, and sculptural objects. Camaraderie and socialization with fellow woodturners is an integral aspect of the corporation's mission.

While we promote and teach safety, woodturning safety is an individual person's responsibility requiring appropriate knowledge of procedures for using a lathe and tools. This includes the use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) such as face shields, safety glasses, dust masks and appropriate foot ware.

ARTICLE III PURPOSES AND OBJECTIVES

Section 1. Purposes and Objectives. The Corporation is organized exclusively for educational purposes, and its mission shall be accomplished by encouraging and facilitating the establishment of training for persons of all levels of competence and experience; by exploring new methods and techniques for advancing woodturning as both a creative craft, and as a unique art form; by

disseminating up-to-date information about sources of material and equipment; by exposing the art of woodturning to the public; and by serving as a center of information about woodturning for members, galleries, interior designers, other interested groups, and the general public.

Section 2. Exclusive Operation. Turners Anonymous is formed and shall be operated exclusively for "charitable, scientific and educational" purposes as those terms are defined within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding section of any future Internal Revenue Law of the United States) as now enacted or may be hereafter amended ("Code"). As stated above, the primary mission is to create and coordinate a wide range of educational opportunities for Woodturners and people interested in woodturning.

Section 3. <u>Inurement.</u> No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to reimburse all reasonable costs incurred by Corporation members for approved out-of-pocket costs and services rendered in response to a request by an officer or board member.

Section 4. Propaganda and Legislation. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation; nor shall the Corporation participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distributing of statements), any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE IV MEMBERS AND DUES

Section 1. <u>Member Qualifications.</u> Any person, firm, or corporation engaged in woodturning or interested therein, may become a member of the Corporation. Membership shall be contingent upon the payment of dues as provided for in Article IV Section 4 of the Bylaws

Section 2. <u>Categories of Membership.</u> There shall be the following categories of membership in the Corporation:

- (a) A Regular Member is any one person, who practices woodturning as a profession or avocation or is interested in woodturning;
- (b) A Family Membership includes all people living together in a household who practice woodturning as a profession or avocation or are interested in woodturning;
- (c) A Contributory Member/Support Member is anyone who elects to pay more than the annual dues, at the amount set forth in Section 4.
- (d) A Business Member is any business or individual who wishes to solicit business from among the membership. This membership category shall not include voting rights in the Corporation but shall entitle the Business member to address the membership for a period limited to five minutes at any membership meeting to inform the membership of what the Business Member offers for sale. To qualify for voting rights, any person associated with a business membership must also become a Regular Member, and pay the associated dues in addition to the business membership.
- (e) An Associate Member is any person under the age of eighteen (18) years, or any individual designated by the Board of Directors at a duly organized meeting, and voted

- unanimously by those present to attain that category. Associate Members shall be entitled to all privileges of regular members, except the right to vote or hold office.
- (f) An Honorary Member is any individual designated by a Board Member or chapter member that has contributed to the chapter in an exemplary manner. Members nominated for this status have been reviewed at a duly organized Board Meeting, and voted by a two thirds majority Vote of the board members to attain that category. Honorary Members shall be entitled to all privileges of regular members without paying the annual dues of the chapter.

Section 3. <u>Membership Application.</u> A person, firm or corporation may become a member by written application on forms provided by the Corporation (paper or electronic forms are acceptable), accompanied by payment of one year's dues, to the Chairperson, secretary or the treasurer of the Corporation.

Section 4. <u>Annual Dues.</u> The Board of Directors may from time to time determine the amount of initiation fee, if any, and annual dues payable to the Corporation by members. Upon initial passage of these Bylaws and until such time as changed by the Board, the following schedule shall remain in effect:

- (a) Initiation fee: currently there is no initiation fee
- (b) Regular Member: \$30 per year, which amount can be waived by the Board of Directors for individuals age eighteen and younger, students at an accredited college or university, individuals with special needs, or such other persons as the Board deems appropriate.
- (c) Family Membership: \$45 per year
- (d) Contributory Member/Supporter Member: \$100 per year
- (e) Business Member: \$100 per year (f) Associate Member: \$0 per year

(g) Honorary Member: \$0 per year

Members joining after July 1st of any year shall have their dues prorated to one half the regular amount.

Dues are non-refundable.

Dues changes will be recorded in board meeting minutes and in updates to the bylaws.

Section 5. Payment of Dues. Renewal dues shall be payable no later than the last day of February.

Section 6. <u>Default and Termination of Membership.</u> When any Member shall be in default in the payment of dues for a period of one Quarter from the date of which such dues become payable, his or her membership shall thereupon be terminated at discretion of the board. Membership may also be terminated by a majority vote of the full Board of Directors

Section 7. <u>Behavior of Members.</u> Members are expected to act appropriately at all Corporation sponsored events. Such events include but are not limited to: club meetings, demonstrations, educational activities and social events.

Appropriate behavior is defined as:

- (a) To work co-operatively with others in order to achieve club objectives.
- (b) To give and receive constructive feedback.
- (c) All feedback is to be delivered in an appropriate manner.
- (d) To consider other people's perspectives for the benefit of the club and its members.
- (e) To establish good relationships with club members to further friendship and camaraderie.

Unacceptable behavior is defined as:

- (a) Behavior that is unwanted by the recipient.
- (b) Has the purpose or effect of violating the recipient's dignity and/or creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment.

Unacceptable behavior does not have to be face-to-face, and may take many forms such as written, telephone, e-mail, text or communications through social media.

Section 8. <u>Violation of behavior policy.</u> The Board of Directors will take the following actions for members who violate the above policy.

- (a) First action (Warning): A letter will be sent notifying the member of the specific actions that were deemed inappropriate. The member will have the option to correct the behavior or terminate his/her membership with full refund of the current year's membership fee.
- (b) Second action (Suspension): If the inappropriate behavior continues after receiving the warning, the Board of Directors will suspend the member's membership for one year (a twelve-month period). The member will receive a full refund of the current year's membership fee.
- (c) Third action (Termination): If the inappropriate behavior still continues after the year of suspension, the Board of Directors will terminate the member's membership permanently with no refund of the current year's membership fee.

ARTICLE V MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

Section 1. Monthly Meetings. Unless the Board of Directors shall approve otherwise, membership meetings shall be held the third Saturday of the months of September through May at 9:45a.m. Should the Board of Directors determine alternate dates, times, and locations for regular meetings, these alternative dates, times, and locations shall be published in the Corporation newsletter, posted on the Corporation website, and emailed to all members. Unless called for by the board, meetings will not be held in the months of June, July, and August. The January meeting shall be deemed the Annual Membership Meeting, as more fully described elsewhere herein.

- **Section 2.** Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Board of Directors. Further, upon written request of twenty percent (20%) of the Membership or majority voice vote at a regular meeting, the Board of Directors shall call a special meeting to consider a specific subject. At least 30 days prior to the date of such special meeting, notice of the special meeting shall be published in the Corporation newsletter, posted on the Corporation website and emailed to all members. The notice shall show the time and place of the meeting and include a proposed agenda.
- **Section 3. Quorum**. The presence in person of 25% of members of the Corporation entitled to vote shall be necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.
- **Section 4.** <u>Voting.</u> Current dues paying members are entitled to vote in accordance to the restrictions set forth in Article IV section 2. Each member of a dues-paying family membership, despite the number of individuals in the family or household, is entitled to vote.

If the manner of deciding any question has not been otherwise prescribed, it shall be decided by a majority vote of the members present in person or (if previously approved by the board) by proxy, assuming that a quorum is in attendance.

Section 5. <u>Proxies.</u> Proxy voting shall not be permitted; provided, however, that the Board shall retain the right at any time to enable proxy voting and determine the conditions, procedures, and requirements that may apply.

ARTICLE VI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- **Section 1.** <u>Management of the Corporation.</u> The management and administration of the affairs of the Corporation shall be by the Board of Directors, and these Bylaws. Each Director shall be at least nineteen years of age. The Board shall consist of no more than twenty-one Directors, exclusive of honorary members, one-third of whom shall be elected by the Members each year for a term of three (3) years at the Annual Membership Meeting. Each Director shall hold office until the expiration of the term for which elected and until a successor has been elected and qualified.
- **Section 2.** <u>Nomination and Election.</u> Not later than December of each year, the Board Chairperson shall appoint a Nominating Committee consisting of up to three (3) persons. At the Annual Membership Meeting, to be held in January of each year, the Nominating Committee shall present a slate of candidates for election to the Board, and these candidates shall be considered for election by the Members to the Board. Members shall retain the right to offer additional candidates for consideration for election to the Board. Members may not vote by proxy but may vote only if in attendance at the Annual Membership Meeting.
- **Section 3.** <u>Increase or Decrease in Number of Directors</u>. The number of Directors may be increased or decreased by vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. No decrease in number of Directors shall shorten the term of any incumbent Director.
- **Section 4. Ex-Officio Members.** The Chairpersons of all Standing Committees shall be ex-officio members of the Board of Directors in addition to the Directors provided above, but shall not be

entitled to vote; in the event, however, that such persons are elected as members of the Board of Directors, they shall retain all rights, including voting rights, of Board members.

Section 5. <u>Interim Vacancies.</u> Vacancies occurring among the Directors during the year shall be filled by majority vote of the Board members present at a regular Board meeting, and these interim Directors shall serve until the next Annual Board meeting.

Section 6. Removal, Absence. Any one or more of the Directors may be removed, for just cause, only by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members of the Board. The Board may consider unexcused absence from four consecutive meetings by any Director of the Board as resignation by said Director.

Section 7. Duties of the Board. The duties of the Board of Directors shall be:

- (a) To manage the affairs of this organization.
- (b) To adopt such policies and procedures for the operation of this organization as may be consistent with the corporate charter and these Bylaws and designed to carry out the objectives of the Corporation.
- (c) To provide for the raising of funds.
- (d) To control the distribution of funds collected.
- (e) To employ such persons as it may deem necessary for the successful attainment of the objectives of this organization.

Section 8. <u>Delegation.</u> The Board of Directors may, by general or special resolution, delegate to Committees of the Board such powers as it may see fit.

Section 9. <u>Resignation.</u> A Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, Board Secretary, or Board Chairperson. Unless otherwise specified in the notice, the resignation shall take effect upon receipt thereof by the Board or such officer, and the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 10. <u>Service.</u> Every Board member shall serve actively on a Committee and be available for Board meetings.

Section 11. <u>Honorary Board Members.</u> Such persons as shall be appointed by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors by reason of their outstanding interest shown and effort expended in the work of the Corporation shall be deemed Honorary Board Members. Such Honorary Board Members may attend all Board meetings but shall have no vote and shall not be included in calculating a quorum.

Section 12. Chairperson of the Board. The Chairperson of the Board shall be duly voted and approved by the Board of Directors. At all meetings of the Board, the Chairperson, or in his/her absence a Vice Chairperson, or in the further absence of any Vice Chairperson a Presiding Chairperson chosen by the Board of Directors, shall preside.

Section 13. <u>Advisor/s to the Board.</u> A Board Advisor is a member who is appointed by the current board and will serve at the invitation of that board. They may attend Board Meetings either inperson or virtually. This member must have the following requirements to be considered for this position:

- (a) Must have served multiple positions on the board in the past.
- (b) He/she must have been active in the club for more than 6 years.
- (c) Be willing to share past experiences and insights to further assist the club's needs.

These advisors will NOT have voting privileges. This is strictly an advisory position and is not regulated by term limits. Instead, an advisor can remain in this position until such time that their service is no longer needed.

Section 14. <u>Action of the Board.</u> Unless otherwise required by law, the vote of a majority of the Directors present at the time of the vote, if a quorum is present at such time, shall be the act of the Board. Each Director present shall have one vote.

Section 15. Quorum of the Board. In regular meetings, a simple majority of Directors present shall constitute a quorum.

Section 16. <u>Initial Director Elections.</u> Any provision herein notwithstanding, the initial election of Directors pursuant to these Bylaws shall be staggered: one-third of the Nominating Committee's slate of Directors, as the Nominating Committee determines, shall be elected for a term of one year; one-third elected for a term of two years; and one-third for the regular term of three years. Any at-large nomination from the membership shall be for a term of three years.

ARTICLE VII OFFICERS

Section 1. <u>Listing of Officers, Qualifications.</u> The officers of the Board shall be a Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson, a Treasurer, a Secretary, and such other officers, with such powers and duties not inconsistent with these Bylaws, as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine. Any number of offices may be held by the same person. The Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary shall be natural persons of full age; the treasurer may be a corporation; but if a natural person, shall be of full age.

Section 2. <u>Length of Term.</u> All officers shall be elected by the Board for a term of one year (or more as determined by current board members and the needs of the Corporation) or until their successors are elected. Officer candidates shall be selected by the Nominating Committee and submitted to the Board for approval at the Annual Board Meeting, immediately following the Annual Membership Meeting. Additional at large nominations also are permissible.

Section 3. The Duties of the Officers

(a) Chairperson - The Chairperson shall preside at all Board of Director and membership meetings, appoint all Committee Chairpersons and Committee members (from among those chosen by the Chairperson and nominations made by each Committee

Chairperson) unless otherwise directed by the Board, call special Board of Director and membership meetings whenever the Chairperson deems necessary or as appropriately requested by the board or membership, serve as an ex-officio member of all Committees, and carry out such duties as usually pertain to this office. The Chairperson shall oversee the general management of the affairs of the Corporation and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are placed into effect. The Chairperson shall countersign all appropriate contract and financial papers signed by the treasurer. The Chairperson shall evaluate the performance of any employees with the Executive Committee of the Board.

- (b) Vice Chairperson The Vice Chairperson shall perform the duties of the Chairperson in the event of absence, resignation, or inability to perform duties by the Chairperson in the order prescribed by the Board of Directors. The Vice Chairperson shall perform all other duties delegated by the Chairperson or the Board of Directors.
- (c) Secretary The Secretary shall keep the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors and all official Committees and shall assure that copies of approved minutes of all such meetings are placed in permanent files of the Corporation; shall attend to the service of all notices of the Corporation and shall keep such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct; and shall attend to such correspondence as may be assigned and perform all duties incidental to the office. The Secretary shall record the term of each Director and advise the Board which Directors terms expire each year. In the case of absence or disability of the Secretary, the Chairperson may appoint a Secretary ProTem.

The Secretary may support the treasurer in filing the taxes.

(d) Treasurer - The treasurer shall have the care and custody of all funds and securities of the Corporation, subject to such regulations as may be imposed by the Board, and shall deposit said funds in the name of the Corporation in such bank or trust company as the Directors may direct; shall, when duly authorized by the Board of Directors, sign and execute all contracts in the name of the Corporation; and shall sign all checks, drafts, notes, and orders for the payment of money, alternate check signers will approved by the Board and Chairperson. All disbursements shall be by check, credit card, or bank transfer.

The Treasurer shall at all reasonable times exhibit the Corporation books and accounts to any Director of the Corporation upon application at the office of the Corporation during ordinary business hours. The Treasurer shall make reports to the Board of Directors at each Board meeting and at such other times as called upon to so. The Treasurer shall prepare and present a report at the Annual Membership Meeting that includes the information defined in ARTICLE XVIII (Annual Report to the Members).

The treasurer, or secretary, shall prepare and file all local, state, and federal tax forms required for a 501(c)(3) organization. As described elsewhere herein, the Board may require that the Treasurer provide a surety bond in an amount to be determined by the

Board. In the event the Board so requires such bond, a validated copy of the surety bond shall be presented to the Board prior to the Treasurer assuming the handling of any Corporation assets and prior to his or her signing any checks. At the end of each fiscal year, the Treasurer, in consort with at least one other Board Member approved by the Chairperson, shall conduct an audit of the Corporation books.

Section 4. Subordinate Officers, Committees, Employees, and Agents. The Board may from time to time elect such other officers and appoint such Committees, employees or other agents as the business of the Corporation may require, including one or more assistant secretaries, and one or more assistant treasurers, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are provided in these Bylaws, or as the Board may from time to time determine. The Board may delegate to any officer or Committee the power to elect subordinate officers and to retain or appoint employees or other agents, or Committees thereof, and to prescribe the authority and duties of such subordinate officers, Committees, employees or other agents. The Board shall have authority to hire, train, and manage any employees as are necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Board, to carry out Corporation policies and achieve Corporation objectives.

Section 5. <u>Resignations.</u> Any officer or agent may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, or to the Chairperson or the Secretary of the Board. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 6. <u>Removal.</u> Any officer, Committee, employee, or other agent of the Corporation may be removed, either for or without cause, by the Board or other authority which elected, retained, or appointed such officer, Committee, employee, or other agent whenever in the judgment of such authority the best interests of the Corporation will be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights of any person so removed.

Section 7. <u>Vacancies.</u> A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause, shall be filled by the Board or by the officer or Committee to which the power to fill such office has been delegated pursuant to this Article, as the case may be, and if the office is one for which these Bylaws prescribe a term, it shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term. Any person appointed pursuant to this section shall hold all duties and powers of the office as if elected in the normal matter.

Section 8. <u>Salaries and Property.</u> Initially the Officers and Directors shall receive no salary or compensation. Any salaries of the officers elected by the Board shall be fixed from time to time by the Board or by such officer as may be designated by resolution of the board. The salaries or other compensation of any other officers, employees and other agents shall be fixed from time to time by the officer or Committee to which the power to elect such officers, or to retain or appoint such employees or other agents, has been delegated pursuant to this Article. No officer shall be prevented from receiving such salary or other compensation by reason of the fact that he is also a Director of the Corporation.

No Member shall have any right, title or interest legal or otherwise in or to the corporate property or in or to any gifts or contributions to the Corporation.

Section 9. General Powers. All officers of the Corporation, as between themselves and the corporation, shall respectively have such authority and perform such duties in the management of the property and affairs of the Corporation as may be determined by resolutions or orders of the Board or, in the absence of controlling provisions in the resolutions or orders of the Board, as may be provided in these Bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII STANDING, OTHER COMMITTEES

Section 1. Executive Committee.

- (a) The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson(s); Secretary, Treasurer, Nominating Committee Chairperson, and such other Committee Chairpersons appointed to the Executive Committee by the Chairperson.
- (b) The Executive Committee shall have the power to act in the absence of the Board. Each Board member shall be provided by the Secretary with a copy of the minutes of each Executive Committee meeting within two weeks after such meeting.

Section 2. Nominating Committee. The duties of the Nominating Committee shall be:

- (a) to present annually a slate of candidates for election to the Board, these candidates, by any class as determined by the Board, to be considered for election to the Board at the Annual Board Meeting;
- (b) to present names of candidates to fill vacancies occurring among the Directors during the year, such candidates to be elected and to serve in accordance with the Bylaws;
- (c) to present names of candidates to be considered to election as Honorary Members or to the Honorary Board, such candidates to be elected and to serve in accordance with the Bylaws; and
- (d) to present names of officer candidates to the Board, to be elected by the Board as officers of the Board.

Section 3. Other Committees.

- (a) The Chairperson shall be empowered to create such special Committees as may be deemed necessary for the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation.
- (b) The Chairperson shall be empowered to appoint, with the concurrence of the Board, a Committee Chairperson and Committee Vice Chairperson and the remaining members of each Committee. Such special Committees shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.
- (c) To serve on a special Committee, one need not be a Director.
- (d) Initially, the Chairperson shall create and fill the following special Committees: Publications, Library, Raffle, Refreshments, Program, Membership, and Community Outreach.

- (e) The Board of Directors may resolve to designate various other Committees, each consisting of three or more Directors or non-Directors, as the Board may determine. Each such Committee shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.
- **Section 4.** <u>Approval of Committee Actions.</u> All acts of all Committees are subject to approval by the Board of Directors. No Committee of the Board other than the Executive Committee, shall, unless pursuant to resolution of the Board, exercise any of the powers or authority vested by these Bylaws or Pennsylvania state law in the Board as such, but any Committee of the Board may make recommendations to the Board or Executive Committee concerning the exercise of such powers and authority.
- **Section 5.** <u>Survival of Fiduciary Duty.</u> The establishment of any Committee of the Board and the delegation thereto of power and authority shall not alone relieve any Director of his or her fiduciary duty to the Corporation.

ARTICLE IX MEETINGS, NOTICE, WAIVER

- **Section 1.** <u>Board of Directors.</u> The Annual Board of Directors meeting shall be held in January of each year for the purpose of electing officers and transacting such other business as may come before it. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least quarterly throughout the year. The board may hold its regular meetings at the office of the Corporation or at such other places, either within or without the state, as it may from time to time determine.
- **Section 2.** Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the Chairperson upon three (3) days' notice to each Director, either personally, by e-mail, or by wire, and shall be called on the written request of five (5) members of the Board. The board may hold its special meetings at the office of the Corporation or at such other places, either within or without the state, as it may from time to time determine.
- **Section 3.** Committee Meetings. All Committees of the Corporation shall meet upon call of their Committee Chairperson and at such other times as provided in these Bylaws.
- **Section 4.** <u>Notice.</u> Whenever written notice is required to be given to any person under the provisions of the articles, these Bylaws, or Pennsylvania state law, it may be given to such person either personally, telephone, or by sending a copy thereof by first class mail, postage prepaid, or by email, to his address supplied by him or her to the Corporation for the purpose of notice. If the notice is sent by mail or email, it shall be deemed to have been given to the person entitled thereto when deposited in the United States mail for transmission to such person. A notice of meeting shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting and any other information required by law or these Bylaws.

When a meeting is adjourned, it shall not be necessary to give any notice of the adjourned meeting or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting, other than by announcement at the meeting at which such adjournment is taken.

Section 5. Waivers of Notice. Whenever any written notice is required to be given under the provisions of the articles, these Bylaws, or Pennsylvania state law, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Except as otherwise required by these Bylaws, neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, a meeting need be specified in the waiver of notice of such meeting.

Attendance of a person at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a person attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting was not lawfully called or convened.

Section 6. <u>Modification of Proposal Contained in Notice.</u> Whenever the language of a proposed resolution is included in a written notice of a meeting, the meeting considering the resolution may without further notice adopt it with such clarifying or other amendments as do not enlarge its original purpose.

Section 7. Exception to Requirement of Notice. Wherever any notice or communication is required to be given to any person under the provisions of the articles, these Bylaws, Pennsylvania state law, or by the terms of any agreement or other instrument or as a condition precedent to taking any corporate action, and communication with such person is then unlawful, the giving of such notice or communication to such person shall not be required, and there shall be no duty to apply for a license or other permission to do so.

Section 8. Conference Telephone Meetings. One or more persons may participate in a meeting of the Board or of a Committee of the Board by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. Participation in a meeting pursuant to this section shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

Section 9. Conduct of Meetings. Except as provided herein, the conduct of all meetings shall be patterned after normal parliamentary procedure. Difficulties in procedure shall be resolved following principles described in Robert's Rules of Order, which shall govern.

ARTICLE X OUORUM, MANNER OF ACTING

Section 1. <u>Board of Directors.</u> A Board of Directors quorum shall be required for the transaction of business. Every Director shall be entitled to one vote. Except as otherwise specified in the articles or these Bylaws or provided by statute, the acts of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board. The Directors shall act only as a board and the individual Directors shall have no power as such, except that any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting, if a consent or consents in writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all of the Directors in office and shall be filed with the secretary of the Corporation.

Section 2. Committees. A majority of the Committee membership shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Committee.

Section 3. <u>Interested Directors or Officers.</u> No contract or transaction between the Corporation and one or more of its Directors or officers, or between the Corporation and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other organization in which one of more of its Directors or officers are Directors or officers, or have a financial interest, shall be void or avoidable solely for such reason, or solely because the Director or officer is present at or participates in the meeting of the Board which authorizes the contract or transaction, or solely because his or their votes are counted for such purpose, if:

- (a) the material facts as to the relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the Board and the Board in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative votes of a majority of the disinterested Directors, even though the disinterested Directors are less than a quorum; or
- (b) the contract or transaction is fair as to the Corporation as of the time it is authorized, approved or ratified, by the Board. Common or interested Directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board which authorizes a contract or transaction specified in this section.

ARTICLE XI CONTINGENCY FUNDS

Section 1. Contingency Funds. Contingency funds may be set aside in such amounts as deemed necessary by the Board of Directors to cover special emergency situations or any contingencies. In the event the contingency funds are inadequate to meet the emergency, the Board of Directors may designate ways and means of providing funds.

ARTICLE XII OWNERSHIP AND TRANSFER OF PROPERTY

Section 1. <u>Right to Acquire Property.</u> The Board of Directors shall have the right to acquire on behalf of the Corporation real and personal property by purchase, lease, gift or otherwise and to the extent that may be convenient or necessary, to hold such property, and it shall be the right of the Board to dispose of said property or any part thereof as provided by law. All such property acquired by the Corporation shall be held in the name of the Corporation.

Section 2. <u>Sale Proceeds.</u> Except as provided otherwise herein, no part of the normal proceeds from the sale or transfer of property held by the Corporation shall inure to the personal benefit of any individual Director, Officer, Committee Member, Member, or employee of the Corporation.

Section 3. Stock Certificates. The Corporation will not issue any stock certificates

ARTICLE XIII PERSONAL USE OF CORPORATION FUNDS PROHIBITED

Section 1. Personal Use of Corporation Funds.

- (a) No Corporation funds shall be used for the personal use by any Director, Officer, employee, or other person or entity associated therewith, and similarly no Corporation asset shall inure to personal benefit of any such person or entity.
- (b) Personal use is defined as any use not directly and clearly related to Corporation objectives.

ARTICLE XIV CORPORATION, DIRECTOR LIABILITY

Section 1. Contracts, Liability. No Board member, Officer, Committee, or employee of the Corporation, or any other person, shall contract or incur any debt on behalf of the Corporation, pledge the Corporation's credit, or in any way render it liable, unless authorized by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. <u>Limitation of Personal Liability of Directors.</u> A Director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable for monetary damages as such for any action taken, or any failure to take any action, unless:

- (a) the Director has breached or failed to perform the duties, as further defined in this Article, of his or her office; and
- (b) the breach or failure to perform constitutes self-dealing, willful misconduct, or recklessness.

The provisions of this Section shall not apply to

- (a) the responsibility or liability of a Director pursuant to any criminal statute
- (b) the liability of a Director for the payment of taxes pursuant to local, state or federal law.

Section 3. Standard of Care and Justifiable Reliance. A Director of the Corporation shall stand in a fiduciary relationship to the Corporation, and shall perform his or her duties as a Director, including his or her duties as a member of any Committee of the Board upon which he or she may serve, in good faith, in a manner he or she reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the Corporation, and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, skill and diligence, as a person of ordinary prudence would use under similar circumstances. In performing his or her duties, a Director shall be entitled to rely in good faith on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by any of the following:

(a) One or more officers or employees of the Corporation whom the Director reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented

- (b) Counsel, public accountants or other persons as to matters which the Director reasonably believes to be within the professional or expert competence of such person;
- (c) A Committee of the Board upon which he or she does not serve, duly designated in accordance with law, as to matters within its designated authority, which Committee the Director reasonably believes to merit confidence.

A Director shall not be considered to be acting in good faith if he or she has knowledge concerning the matter in question that would cause his or her reliance to be unwarranted.

In discharging the duties of their respective positions, the Board, Committees of the Board and individual Directors may, in considering the best interest of the Corporation, consider the effects of any action upon employees, upon persons with whom the Corporation has business and other relations, and upon communities in which the offices or other establishments of or related to the Corporation are located, as well as all other pertinent factors. The consideration of those factors shall not constitute a violation of this Section.

Absent breach of fiduciary duty, lack of good faith, or self-dealing, actions taken, or failure to take any action, as a Director shall be presumed to be in the best interest of the Corporation.

ARTICLE XV INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND OTHER AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Section 1. General. The Corporation may indemnify each of its Directors, each of its Officers, each of its employees designated for indemnification by the Corporation, and each member of a Committee, for the defense of civil proceedings as hereinafter provided in this Article.

Section 2. Non-Derivative Action. In case of action other than one by or on behalf of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor, the Corporation may indemnify each of its Directors, Officers, employees, or Committee members, as aforesaid, from and against and all judgments, fines, amounts paid in settlement, and reasonable expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, actually and necessarily incurred as a result of such action imposed or asserted against such Director, officer, employee or Committee member, as aforesaid, by reason of his or her being or having been a Director, officer, employee, or Committee member, as aforesaid, but only in the event that a determination shall have been made that such Director, Officer, employee, or Committee member acted in good faith for a purpose which he or she reasonably believed to be in the best interest of the Corporation, or, in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity or such expenses deemed, either judicially or in the manner hereinafter provided, proper. This indemnification shall be made only if the Corporation shall be advised by its Board that the Director, Officer, employee, or Committee member, as aforesaid, has met the aforestated standard of conduct. In rendering such advice, the Board shall act either:

- (a) by a quorum consisting of Directors who are not parties to such action; or
- (b) if such a quorum is not attainable with due diligence, upon the opinion in writing of independent legal counsel.

If the foregoing determination is to be made by the Board, it may rely, as to all questions of law, on the advice of independent legal counsel. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not of itself create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith or in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in the best interest of the Corporation and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful.

Section 3. <u>Derivative Action</u>. In the case of an action by or on behalf of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor, the Corporation may indemnify each of its Directors, Officers, employees, or Committee members, as aforesaid, from and against the reasonable expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees actually and necessarily incurred by any such Director, Officer, employee, or Committee member, as aforesaid, in connection with such action or an appeal therefrom, except with respect to matters as to which such Director, Officer, employee, or Committee member is adjudged, pursuant to the method described in Section 2, immediately above, to have breached his or her duty to the Corporation by not discharging his or her obligation to the Corporation in good faith and with reasonable degree of diligence, care, and skill which ordinarily prudent men or women would exercise under similar circumstances in like positions.

Section 4. <u>Mandatory Indemnification.</u> Notwithstanding any contrary provision of the articles or these Bylaws, to the extent that a representative of the Corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in this Article, he or she may be indemnified against expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection therewith.

Section 5. <u>Determination of Entitlement to Indemnification.</u> Unless ordered by a court, any indemnification under this Article above shall be made by the Corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon determination that indemnification of the representative is proper in the circumstances because he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in such paragraph. Such determination shall be made:

- (a) by the Board by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding; or
- (b) if such a quorum is not obtainable--or even if obtainable, a majority vote of a quorum of disinterested directors so directs--by independent legal counsel in a written opinion.

Section 6. <u>Advancing Expenses.</u> Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit, or proceeding may be paid by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit, or proceeding as authorized by the Board in a specific case upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the representative to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized above in this Article.

Section 7. <u>Insurance.</u> The Corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, Officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a Director, Officer, employee or agent of

another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any capacity or arising out of such person's status as such, whether or not the Corporation would otherwise have the power to indemnify such person against such liability.

Section 8. Reliance on Provisions. Each person who shall act as an authorized representative of the Corporation shall be deemed to be doing so in reliance upon the rights of indemnification provided by this Article.

Section 9. <u>Applicability.</u> Every reference in this Article to a Director of the Corporation shall include every Director, Officer, employee, or Committee member, as aforesaid, thereof, or former Director, Officer, employee, or Committee member, as aforesaid, thereof, and may inure to the benefit of heirs, executors, and administrators of such person. The right of indemnification herein provided shall be in addition to any and all rights to which any Director, Officer, employee, or Committee member, as aforesaid, of the Corporation otherwise might be entitled, and the provision hereof shall neither impair nor adversely affect such rights.

ARTICLE XVI CALENDAR YEAR

Section 1. Calendar Year. The Corporation shall operate on a calendar year basis. The Board shall retain the right, to change to any fiscal year basis or to change to any different fiscal year basis, if, in the Board's judgment, such change better enables the Corporation to achieve its corporate purposes and goals.

ARTICLE XVII PAYMENTS, SURETY BONDS, SEAL

Section 1. Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the Corporation, shall be signed or endorsed by the Chairperson and Treasurer or by such person or persons and in such manner as from time to time may be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. <u>Surety Bonds.</u> In case the Board of Directors shall so require, any officer or agent of the Corporation shall execute to the Corporation a bond in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the board may direct, conditioned upon the faithful performance of his duties to the Corporation and including responsibility for negligence and for the accounting for property, funds, or securities of the Corporation which may come into his hands. All such bonds shall be for the benefit of and payable to the Corporation, and the premiums and all other costs therefor shall be paid by the Corporation.

ARTICLE XVIII ANNUAL REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Section 1. <u>Annual Report to the Members.</u> The Board shall direct the Treasurer to prepare and present at the Annual Membership Meeting a report showing in appropriate detail the following:

- (a) The assets and liabilities, including any trust funds, of the Corporation as of the end of the fiscal year immediately preceding the date of the report.
- (b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds, during the year immediately preceding the date of the report.
- (c) The revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and restricted to particular purposes, for the year immediately preceding the date of the report, including separate data with respect to each trust fund held by or for the Corporation.
- (d) The expenses or disbursements of the Corporation, for both general and restricted purposes, during the year immediately preceding the date of the report, including separate data with respect to each trust fund held by or for the Corporation.

The annual report to the members shall be filed with the minutes of the Annual Membership Meeting.

ARTICLE XIX DISSOLUTION

Section 1. <u>Dissolution.</u> Upon the dissolution of the Corporation for any cause, the properties then in possession of the Corporation shall be turned over to any such successor organization as the Board of Directors shall determine; or in the absence of any such successor organization, the said property shall be distributed as otherwise provided by law.

(a) In the event the Corporation is dissolved and liquidated, the Board shall, after paying or making provision for payment of all the liabilities of the Chapter, distribute its remaining assets to one or more organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and Section 170(b)(1)(A) of the Code (and who have been so described for a period of at least sixty (60) months prior thereto) exclusively for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Code. Any of the property or assets not so distributed shall be distributed by the Court of Common Pleas for the County in which the principal office of the Corporation is located to one or more organizations so described for such purposes.

ARTICLE XX AMENDMENTS

Section 1. <u>Amendments.</u> These Bylaws may be enlarged, amended or repealed at any meeting of the Board of Directors by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors, provided that the proposed amendment shall be submitted in writing to each Director at least fifteen days prior to said meeting.

If any bylaw regulating an impending election of Directors is adopted, amended or repealed by the Board, there shall be set forth in the notice of the next meeting for the election of Directors the bylaw so adopted, amended or repealed, together with a concise statement of the changes made.

ARTICLE XXI CONSTRUCTION

Section 1. Construction. If there are any conflicts between the provisions of the certificate of incorporation and these Bylaws, the provisions of the certificate of incorporation shall govern. All matters not addressed in these Bylaws or the certificate of incorporation shall be governed by relevant Pennsylvania state law.

ARTICLE XXII RELATIONSHIP TO AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF WOODTURNERS

Section 1. AAW Membership. The Corporation is an official Chapter of the American Association of Woodturners (AAW), a 501(c)(3) educational nonprofit corporation and shall support and participate in the activities of that organization. All Officers of the Corporation agree to be members in good standing of the AAW. The Corporation will encourage all members to become members of AAW. The AAW specifically disassociates itself from any debts, obligations, or encumbrances of the Corporation. The AAW and its Board of Directors shall have no legal or financial responsibility in the affairs of the Corporation or its Board of Directors. The AAW does not shoulder any legal liability for accidents that occur during events of any kind sponsored by the Corporation. The Corporation shall comply with all AAW insurance obligations for demonstrators and attendees at official Corporation events.

ARTICLE XXIII CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Section 1. Purpose: The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect the Corporation interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the Corporation or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

Section 2. Definitions:

- (a) Interested Persons: Any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing board delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person.
- (b) Financial Interest: A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:
 - i) an ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement
 - ii) a compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any entity or individual with which the Corporations has a transaction or arrangement,

iii) a potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial. A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Section 3, Paragraph 2 of this Article, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the Board of Directors decides that a conflict of interest exists. The Corporation will only enter agreements with an Interested Person if the agreement is at cost or within industry average profit.

Section 3. Procedures:

- (a) Duty to Disclose: In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.
- (b) Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists: After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

Procedures for addressing the conflict of interest:

- (i) An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
- (ii) The Chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.
- (iii) After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine whether Corporation can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.
- (iv) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in

the Corporation's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination, it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

(c) Violations of the Conflict of Interest Policy: If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, after hearing the member's response and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Section 4. Records of Proceedings: The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board delegated powers shall contain:

- (a) the names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the governing Board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed
- (b) the names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement
- (c) the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement
- (d) a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

Section 5. <u>Compensation:</u> A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation or services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation. No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.

Section 6. Annual Statements: Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with governing board delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person

- (a) has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy
- (b) has read and understands the policy
- (c) has agreed to comply with the policy
- (d) understands that the Corporation is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Section 7. Periodic Reviews: To ensure the Corporation operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects: (a) whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey information, and the result of arm's length bargaining; and (b) whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations conform to the Corporation's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction.

Section 8. <u>Use of outside Experts</u>: When conducting the periodic reviews provided for in Section 7 (above), the Corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

ARTICLE XXIV Prohibited Activities

The Corporation was formed for charitable and educational purposes as set forth in Articles II and III of these By-Laws. Thus, the Corporation recognizes that it is prohibited from undertaking activities which impermissibly benefit private interests. The Corporation shall not engage in any activities not permitted to be carried on by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under § 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Adopted: Date <u>November 20, 2021</u>
Chairperson Signature: <u>Signature on File</u>
Chairperson Name: Rebecca A Maruca
Vice Chairperson Signature:
Vice Chairperson Name:
Secretary Signature: <u>Signature on File</u>
Secretary Name: <u>Maurice Brazeau</u>
Treasurer Signature: <u>Signature on File</u>
Treasurer Name: G. H. Nickodemus